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Incependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’} in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Ssction 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the sthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements undsr the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Managemant and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility alse includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opiniorn. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expecied to influencs the sconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in 8 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in the paragraph
2(B)(f) below on reporfing under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014,

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss {including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 10 April 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.
b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 33(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s} or entity(ies}, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

the Note 33(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from

- any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (*Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedurss that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (i} and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account, however, the feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility has not been enabled. Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit trail feature
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BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

of the said software.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our cpinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon
by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

o

Shweta Kumar

Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25509822BMXIBB2800
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not

(i) (b}

(©

(d)

(e}

(i) ()

(b}

i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in three years. In accordance with this programme, property, plant and equipment were verified
during the year ended 31 March 2023, In our opinfon, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deed of immovable property disclosed in the financial
statements is held in the name of the Company. However, original title deed is under lien with
bank for the loan facilities availed by the Company. Therefore, we could not verify that title deed
and have not received independent confirmation from bank for the same.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold any
physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii}(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(i}(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a) to 3(ii}{f} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(vii) (@)

(b)

(viil)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

(x) (@

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate
authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Income-Tax and Professional
Tax.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in ammears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. As at 31 March 2025, the Company has interest free
loans of INR 218,500 thousands from SAMHI| Hotels Limited (“ultimate holding company™) and
INR 147,669 thousands from Barque Hotels Private Limited (“holding company”), repayable at
the option of the Company and accordingly classified as "Other equity”. As these loans are
repayable at the option of the Company, there has been no default in repayment thereof.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we repori that the Company has used funds raised on short-
term basis aggregating to INR 38,553 thousands for long-term purposes.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){e} is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures {as
definad under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)}{f} is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
Page 6 of 10
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Continued)

(b)

(i) (a)

(b)

{c)

{xii)

(i)

(xiv} (a)

b

(xv)

{xvi) (a)

)

©

&

(xvii)

{xviif}

(xix)

(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a wholly cwned subsidiary of a public limited company and accordingly the
requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on
the basis of our examination of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}{c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable,

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 9,246 thousands in the current financial year and
Rs 12,925 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 32 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at 31 March
2025. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at 31 March 2025
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Audltor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(09

by Rs. 39,572 thousands.

Further, it explains the management's assessment of going concern assumption and its
assertion that based on best estimates made by it, the Company will continue as a going
concern i.e. continue its operations and will be able to discharge its liabilities and realise its
assets, for the foreseeable future. The Company has obtained support letter from Ultimate
Holding Company for providing operational and financial support for atleast one year from the
date of signing of the financial statements.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabifities, cur knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nathing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx}{a} and 3(xx){(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

g
ghmlmar
Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAI UDIN:25509822BMXIBB2800
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Paulmech
Hospitality Private Limited ("the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2025, based on the intenal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India {the "Guidance Note™).

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference fo financial
statements were esfablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

ol

Shweta Kumar

Partner
Piace: Gurugram Membership No.: 509822
Date: 28 May 2025 ICAl UDIN:25509822BMXIBB2800
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Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN - USS100WB2010PTC 151700

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(A1l amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000). unless orherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-curvent assets

Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Total current assefs

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity
Total equity

Liabilitles
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non- current liabillties

Current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
- toal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Pravisions
Totzl current liabillties

Total liahilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

As at Asat
Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

3 79,200 79200
3 4,45,041 1,54,452
4 10,106 196
5 2,079 2,064
6 5,363 6,445
5,41,789 242,357
7 3.264 1,152
z 22,685 6,097
25,949 7,249
567,738 2,49.606
9 19,978 19,978
10 2,81,141 2,201,387
301,119 241,365

11 2,00,991 =

[z 107 -

2,01,098 -

13 1,019 -

14

5,361 313
15 57,496 7,688
14 1,60¢ 240

17 44 -
65,521 8,241
2,66,61% 8,241
5,67,738 2,49,606

The notes from Note 1 to Note 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR& Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

[CAI Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022
Shweta Kumar

Parter
Membership No.: 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Director

DN : 03563467

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

itality Private Limited

T

Manish Bhagat
Direcior

DAN ; 08092409

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025



Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN - U55101WB2010PTC151700

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income
Other income 19 151 76
Total income 151 76
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 20 3,815 -
Other expenses 22 5,582 1,589
9,397 1,589
Loss before finance costs and tax (9,246) (1.513)
Finance costs 21 15,429
- 15,429
Loss before tax (9,246) (16,942)
Tax expense / (income) 18
Current tax = -
Tax expense related o earlier years - (4,017}
= 4.017)
Laoss for the year (9,246) (12,925)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (9,246) (12,925)
(Loss) per equity share 23
Face value of INR. 10 each
Basic (INR) {4.63) (6.47)
Diluted (INR) (4.63) (6.47)
The notes from Note 1 to Note 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For BSR& Co.LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

wt

oF

Partner
Membership No.: 509822 DIN : 03563467
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 May 2025 Date: 28 May 2025

spitality Private Limited

W)

Manish Bhagat
Director
DIN : 08092409

Place: Gurugratm
Date: 28 May 2025



Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited
CIN - USS101WEB2010PTCI5LT00

Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31 March 2025
(Al amounts are in Indfan Rupees('000), unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Number of shares A
As at 1 April 2023 19,97,752 19978
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 19,97,752 19,978
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at 31 March 2025 19.97,752 19,978
b, Other equity (refer note 19)
Particulars Equity component of Equity component of Reserves and surplus Total
interest free loan interest free loan Other equity
(unsecared) from {unsecured) from
holding company Ulsimate Holding
’ Securitles premium | Retained earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2023 - - 12,920 (73,777 (60.857)
Loss for the year = - (12,925) (12,925)
Loan transferred from borTowings 267,669 - - 2.67,669
Loan received 27,500 - - 27.500
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,95,169 - 12,920 (86,702) 2,21,387
Loss for the year - - - {9,246) (9,246)
Loan received 27,500 2,16,500 - - 244,000
Repayment of loan {175,000} - = - (1,75,000)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 1.47.669 2.16.500 12,920 {95.948) 2.81.141
The notes from Note | to Note 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date artached.
For BSR& Co. LLP Fe n behalf of Board of Dircclors of
Chartared Avcountants pitality Private Limited
[CAI Firm Registration No.: 101243W/AW-100022
A @'\ﬁ
%r Manish Bhagat
Parirer Diresor Direcror
Membership No.: 509522 DIN : 03563467 DIN : 18092409
Flace: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 28 May 2025

Date: 28 May 2025

Date: 28 May 2025




Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN - US5101 WEB2010PTC151700

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 3t March 2025
(Al amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000), unless otherwise stated)

A,

Cash Now from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments lor:
Finance costs
Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes
{Increase) in other financial assets
(Increasc) / decrease in other assels
Increase in trade payables
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilitics
I in other financial liabilitics
Increase in provisions

Cash used in operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash msed in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress
Proceeds from maturity of bank deposits

Bank deposits made

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash Mow from financing activities

Proceeds from non-current borrowing
Finance cost paid
Loan from Holding Company received

Repayment of loan Holding Company
Loan from Ultimate Holding Company received
Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

Net inerease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks on current account

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
1 March 2024

(9,240) (16,942)
- 15,429
(5N {76)
(9,397 (1,589)
(3.042) -
{15,760} 867
5,049 8
1,361 (34)
11,911 -
151 .
{9,727) (748)
{15 (2,064)
(9,742) (2,812)
(2,46,634) {25,661}
- 2,300
(6,732) (3.300)
15 76
(2,53,351) {25,585)
2,03,958 -
(7,753) (1,678)
27,500 217,500
{1,75,000) -
2,16,500 -
2.65,205 25,822
2112 (2,575)
1,152 3,727
3,264 1,152
As at Ay at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
3,264 1,152
3,264 1,152




Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited
CIN - US5101WB2010PTC 151700

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts are in Indizn Rupees (000}, unless otherwise stated)

I,

.,

The notes from Note | 1o Note 33 form an integral part of these financial statements,

Movement In financial Jiabilities

As on 1 April 2024

Change from financing cashflows
Finance cost paid

Proceeds from non-current borrowing

Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense

As on 31 March 2025
As on 1 April 2023

Change from financing cashflows

Proceads from non current borrowings

Other non cash changes
Finance cost expense

Non-current borrowings transferred to other equity

As on 31 March 2024

Amount

(7,753)
2,03,958

5,805

 Tnaw

2,53,918

(1.644)

15,395
(2,67,669)

The Cash Flows from operating activitics section in Statement of Cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the Tndirect Method' as set out in the

Ind AS 7 "Staterncat of Cash Flows".

As per our report of even date attached

For BS

R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountanis

TCAI Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022

Z

i

g

Shweta
Partner

Kumar

Membership No.: 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Paulmggh Hospitality Private Limited

Manish Bhagat
Director Director
DIN : 03563467 DIN : 08092409
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 MMay H25 Date; 23 May 2025



Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: U55101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

1.1

1.2

Corporate information

Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a Company domiciled in India. The Company
was incorporated in India on 27 July 2010 as per the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is limited by
shares. The registered office of the Company is at Plot No. CF-15, PR No. 01-0240 AA-IC, Newtown,
Rajarhat, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700156 and the corporate office of the Company is situated at 14th
Floor, Building 10 C, Cyber City, Phase-II, Gurugram, Haryana, India, 122002.

The Company is a hotel development and investment Company with focus on operating internationally
branded hotels across key cities in the Indian sub-continent.

Presently, the Company has one hotel (Holiday Inn Express, Kolkata — New town) which got operational
subsequent to year end.

Basis of preparation

A. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the “Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board
of Directors on 28 May 2025.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies, including changes thereto, are included in Note 2.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest thousands, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
Also refer note 32 for going concern basis of accounting used by the management,

Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that affect the
application of Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are:




Paunlmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: US5101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance
with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, which involves key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Useful lives, recoverable amounts and impairment of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment are based on estimates
and assumptions regarding the expected market outlook, expected future cash flows, obsolescence, demand,
competition, known technological advances. The Company reviews the useful lives and recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting date.

iii} Employee benefit obligations

iv)

Employee benefit obligations (gratuity and compensated absences) are determined using actuarial
valuations, which involves determination of the discount rate, salary growth rate and mortality rates. Due
to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-tetm nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted prices in
active markets are not available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values,

Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Also, refer
note 27 for further disclosures.

Recognition of Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities involves making judgements and estimations about the
availability of future taxable profit against which carried forward tax losses can be used. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current and non-current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established control framework
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Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: US5101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000), unless otherwise stated)

1)

with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team has overall responsibility for overseeing
all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the ultimate
Holding Company’s Chief Financial Officer.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information
is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to
support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety at the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in note 27.

Material accounting policies
Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses if any.

Cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for use as at the reporting date are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress.

Cost comprises the purchase price, import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, borrowing costs
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition

0




Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: US5101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

2)

i

for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only
if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure, are charged to the profit or loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation
Frechold land is not depreciated.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised cost

- Debt investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

- Equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYOCI)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

v ./. N



Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: U55101 WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000), unless otherwise stated)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

—the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measure at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL.

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as described above are measured
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may imevocably
designate & financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes;

— the stated policies and objectives for the porifolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
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Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: US5101 WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000), unless otherwise stated)

it

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
assets at including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL

Financial assets | 1hese assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised cost | effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income

at FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.
Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
investments recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
at FVOCI arecovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses

are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
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Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: US5101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

i,

vi

retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest free loans

The Company has obtained interest free loan from its holding company. Such interest free loans are measured
at fair values determined using a present value technique with inputs that include future cash flows and
discount rates that reflect assumptions that market participants would apply in pricing such loans. The
difference between the transaction price and the fair value of such loans have been recognised as equity
component in the books of the Company. The loan component is subsequently measured at amortised costs
and interest expense is recognised using effective interest rate method. On modification in the terms of such
loans wherein they became repayable at the option of the borrower resulting in it becoming perpetual debt,
such loans including accrued interest up to the date of modification have been treated as other equity.

Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Such guarantees are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

- the expected credit loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

- the amount recognised initially less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with Ind AS.

vi. Modification of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets:

[f the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair value.

[f the cash flows of the modified asset carried at amortized cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates

1%




Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: U55101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees {'000), unless otherwise stated)

3)

the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognizes the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment

. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
-a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- it i3 probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses
debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less thant 12 months).
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CIN: US5101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ("000), unless otherwise stated)

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initiat
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets,

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in OCI.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

B. Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each reporting date if there is any indication of impairment
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s (or cash generating unit’s) net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific
to the asset (or cash generating unit) {CGU}.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment loss
recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated,
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if any to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of
CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which
impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

4) Provisions (other than employee benefits)
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed by the management at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates at
each reporting date.

5) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements.

6) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred by the Company
in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and/or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended in the period
during which active development is delayed due to interruption, other than temporary interruption. Other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the restated consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

7) Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits




Paulmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN: U55101WB2010PTC151700

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees ('000), unless otherwise stated)

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus and ex-gratia.
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan — Provident fund and Employee state insurance

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. Provident fund scheme and employee state
insurance are defined contribution schemes. The Comparny makes specified monthly contributions towards
these schemes. The Company's contributions are recorded as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the period in which the employee renders the related service. If the contribution already paid is less
than the contribution payable under the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date, the deficit
payable under the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future
payment or a cash refind,

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation,

The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for
determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, are based on the market yields on
government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity period approximating to the terms of
related obligations.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from
plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the profit or loss as past service cost.

(c) Other long-term employee benefit obligations ~ Compensated absences
The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly within twelve months
after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records
an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using
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the projected unit credit method. Re measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognized in the profit or loss.

8) Recognition of dividend income, interest income or expense
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right to receive payment
is established.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

9) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit or loss on
a net basis,

10) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that it relates to a business combination, or an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years: The amount of current tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty
related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
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recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax is not recognised for

e temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that;
- is not a business combination; and
- at the time of the transaction (i) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and (ii) does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences.
If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then
future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the
business plans of the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed
when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets and Company intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets ona net basis or such tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

11) Measurement of earnings before finance costs and tax

The Company has elected to present earnings before finance costs and tax as a separate line item on the face
of the Statement of profit and loss. The Company measures eamings before finance costs and tax on the face
of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In the measurement, the Company does not include finance costs
and tax expense.
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12) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the
Company’s other components. and for which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). In accordance with Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments”, the operating
segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the
CODM to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

13) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti - dilutive.

14) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and short-term,
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

15} Expenditure

Expenses are accounted for on the accrual basis and provisions are made for all known losses and liabilities.
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3 Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-pregress

Reconciliation of carrving amount

Freehold land Total Property, Capltal work-in-
{a} plant and equipment progress (b)

Gross carryving amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 79,200 79,200 1,23,322
Additions - = 31130
Balance as at 31 March 2024 79,200 79,200 1,54,452
Additions - - 2,90,589
Balance as at 31 March 2025 79,204 79,200 4,45,041
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at [ April 2023 - - -
Charge for the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - - -
Charge for the year - - -
Balance 35 at 31 March 2025 - > =
Net carrving amount
Balance as at 31 March 2024 79,200 79,200 1,54,452
Balance as at 31 March 2025 79,200 79,100 4,45,041

a) The Company had pledged its frechold land as security for Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD's) issued by Barque Hotels Private Limited and SAMHI JV Business Hotels
Private Limited in favor of Vistra [TCL (India) Limited {Debenture Trustee). The security was released on 21 March 2023, Further, the Company has pledged its freehold land as
security in respect of loan availed from bank by the Company during the current year (refer note 11).

b) Includes capitalised borrowing costs related to construction of the hotel of [NR 25,093 { 31 March 2024 - [NR 19,238).
<} Title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the Company.
d) During the year, the Company has capitalised operating exp in capital work in progress amounting [INR 1,325 ( 31 March 2024 - INR. 6,128).

(i) Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) - Disclosure of ageing schedule

a)} CWIP ageing schedule
Ageing for capital-work-in progress as on 31 March 2025
CWIP Awmount in CWIP for Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Project in progress 2,90,589 31,130 480 1,22,842 445,041
Ageing for capital-work-in progress as on 31 March 2024
CWIP Amount in CWIP for Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects iemporarily suspended 31,130 480 100 1,22,742 154,452

{b) CWIP completion schedule
For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is averdue compared to its original plan, the project-wise details of when the preject is expecied 1o be completed as of 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024 are as follows :

As at 31 March 2025

CWIP To be completed in Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Project in progress 445,041 - = - 445041
As at 31 March 2024
CWIP To be completed in Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects temporarily suspended 1.54.452 - 5 - 1.54.452

The Company does not have any capital-work-in progress whose cost has exceeded from its original plan.
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4 Other financial assets - oon current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date*
Security deposits

* including interest accrued on bank deposils amounting to 136 (31 March 2024 - Nil}
* Inchudes bank deposits under lien amounting 10 INR. 6,868 (31 March 2024 - INR Nil}

5 [locome tax assets (pet)
Tax deducled at source and income tax receivabie

6 Other noncorvent assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances
Balance with statulory authorities

T Cash and cash equivalenis
{Unsecured, considered pood)

Balances with banks
- In current accounls

8 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Advance to suppliers
Balance with statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses

Asat As at
M March 2025 31 March 2024
6,868 -
3238 196
19,106 196
2079 2,064
2,079 2,064
2,264 2,518
3,099 3.927
5,363 6,445
3.264 - 1,152
3.264 1,152
1,264 5
21,224 6,072
197 20
22,685 64897
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9 Equity share capital Asal Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Nuwber of shares Amount Number of shares Ampunt
Authorksed share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 2ach 20,000,000 20,000 20,00,000 20,000
20,00,000 20,000 10,00,000 20,000
Tssued, subseribed amd fully paid up
Equity shares of INR. |0 each 19.97,752 19,973 19.97,752 19978
19.97.752 19978 19,97,752 19,978
a) Reconcilbation of the equity shares dimg at the beginning and at the end of year.
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares 3
Al the beginning of Lhe year 19.97,752 19,978 19.97,752 19,978
At the end of the year 1997752 19,978 19.97.752 19,978

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions artached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of ¢quily shares having the par value of TNR L0 per share. Each holder of equity share is enlitled 1o one vate per share. The equity shares are entitled to reccive dividend as declared.
In the event of liquidation of the Campany, the holder of equity shares will be emiitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, afer distribution of all preferenial The distribution will be in proporiion
10 the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

<) Shares held by holding company
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Name of sharehobder Nuomber of shares Amownnt Number of shares Amount
Equity shares
Barque Holels Private Limited (Holding Company)® 19,97,752 19,978 19,97.752 19.978
d) Details of sharcholders helding more than 5% shares
Name of sharcholder Number of shares % of bolding Number of shares % of boling
Equily shares
Barque Holels Private Limiled * 19.97,752 100% 19.97.752 100
*1 share is held by Mr. Gyana Das as a nomince sharcholder
€) As per records of the Company, including s register of sharchold bers and cther declaratims Toccived from sharchokders regarding ¢ ial inderesi, the above sharcholding represems both legal and bencficial ownership of

shares.
Mo shares have boen alloned without payment of cash or by way of bomus shares during the period of five years immeodietoly preceding the Balence Sheel date,

1 Details of shares held by premoters -

As at 31 March 2025

No. of shares at the beginning No. of shares at the end .
S.oe Promoter Name of the vear Change during the year of the vear % of Total Shares % change during the yesr
1 Barque Hotels Privale Limited 1997752 - 19.97.752 100% No Change
As at 31 March 2024
Nag. of shares at the beginming No. of shares at the end .
S.mo Promaoter Name of the year Chamge during the year of the vear % of Total Shares % change during the year
1 Barque Hetels Privaie Limiled 19,9775z - 19.97,752 100% Ne Change

i
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As at As at
10 Other equity 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Sccuritics preminm 12,920 12,920
Retained eamings (95,948) (86,702)
Equity component of interest free loans from Helding company 1,47,66% 295,169
Equity component of interest free loans from Ultimate Holding company 2.16.500 -

281,141 2;2[&8’;’
a) Securities premlum
Balance at the beginning of the year 12,920 12,920
Balance at the end of the year 12,920 12,92

Sccurities premium is sed to record the premium reccived on issuc of shares, 1 is urilised in aceordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

b) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year {86,702) {713,777)
Loss for the year (9,246) {12,925)
Balance at the end of the year {95,948) {86,702}
Retaincd camings rep the of lated losses of the Company.

¢) Equity component of interest free loan (unsecored) from Holding company

Balance at the beginning of the year 295,169 -
Add : Loan from Holding Company received - transferred from borrowings - 2,67.669
Add : Loan from Helding Company received 27,500 27,500
Less : Repayment of loan from Holding Company (1,75,000) =
Balance at the end of the year 1.47,669 2,95,16%

This represents the equity component of the interest free loan received from Barque Hotels Private Limited, the Holding Company. Below arc the terms of
unsccured loan from Holding Company w.¢.f | October 2023:

- Loan to be considered ag perpemal debt

- Nil rate of interest

- Bepayabic a1 the option of the Company.

Accordingly, the entire Joan balance (including accrued interest thereon) as on 30 Septernber 2022 has been mansferred 10 Other equity,

) Equity component of Intevest free loan (unsecured) from Ultimate Holding company

Balance at the beginning of the year - %
Add : Lean from Ultimaiwe Holding Company reccived 2,16,500 -
Balance at the end of the year 2.16,.500 -

This represents the equity component of the interest free loan received from SAMHI Hotels Limited, the Ultimate Holding Company. Below are the terms of
this unsccured loan:

- Loan 10 be considered as perpetal debt

- Nil rate of interest

- Repayable at the option of the Company.
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11 Nea-cesvent finaacial Eabdlities - Borrawings As ot As at
31 March 225 31 March 2024
From banks {secursd)
Term loan 20200 =
Loys: Current mamriics of Jong-term bomrowngs (refer note 13 (1019 -
—d20 e —
‘Terms & comditions of term loam from hank
Carrying Ampunt 23| Carrying Amount a3 Sanctioned Amssnt Interest rale charged per
Particulars on on (INR thousands) Asat3] March | Avat3l Repayment Tarms Security detaits
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 " 2025 March 2024
Fedoral Bank Limited 202,010 = 300,000 i Nil The loan is repayable in 44 i) Exchusive charge on imrmovable property.
(Interesy rate  q ty i) Exclusia charge an mmovable properry
fixed for 5 years I siarting from 31 le asset of the hotel property both
and shall be December 2023, The kender [ present and fure
reviwed post 60 has an option to seck i) Exclustve charge on cntire current agsoes
months from the P of the Joan in of the company (both present and funoe).
dare of cither pan or full at the end of |iv) Dobt Service Reserve Account for one
dishursemem). 5 years Gom the date of first | quarter in the form of fixed deposit or bank
Jisk and cvery 5 guoTaniee.
years thercafter.
13 Nen current Provisiony
Provisiom for emplovee benelits
Compensaicd absences (Refer nole 209 107 -
107 -
13 Current fi liahilities - B
Current manurides of kwe-term bomrowings (refer noie 113 1019 -
_—_mlL —_—
14 Curvenr financlsl Habllitlss - Trade payables
Trade payablcs
= total ¥ing ducs of mi and smmall {refor nate 29) _ -
~ todal surstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 5361 s
5361 33
a) The Company's exposure 10 currency and liquidity risks retated to made payables #s disclosed in note 27,
Teade payable speing schedule
As gt 31 March 2025
Owistanding fer following periods from dare of iransaction
| More than 3
Particulary Accrued expesses Less tham 1 year 1-1 years 2-3 years Total
Othors 563 4798 - - - 5361
As at 31 March 2024
Ouotstandise for from date of ransaction
Particwlars Accrusd expenses Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mn;:::n 3 Total
Orthers: 33 - - - - 313
The Company docs not have any disputed ducs which arc payable as at 31 harch 2025 and 31 March 2024,
15 Current fimancial liabildes - Otlwrs
Employee relaved peyables 632 B
Payable for capital asseis* 45,585 T.688
Other payable® 10.2%% s
. — TN,
= Also refer nowe 26 for rlated party disclosure,
16 Cnker current Kablltles
Staniory ducs payabhe 1.601 240
1.601 249
17 Cwrrent provislons
Provislon for enaployee bemefls
Compensaled absences [Refer nowe 200 44
44
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18 Tox expense

For the year ender  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
A. The major components of income tax expense are
Recogaised in profit or loss
Currenl tax -2
Tax expense relaled to carlier years = 4,017}
- 4.017)
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate (tax exp and the ting profit multilpied by Company's domestic tax rate)
For the year ended For the year eaded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
% Amount % Amount
Loss before tax (9,246) (16,942
Tax using Lhe Company"s domeslic lax rate 2517 (2,327) 2517 (4.264)
Tax Effect of:
Non recognition of deferred taxes on temporary differences (24.30) 2,247 (25.04} 4,242
Non recognition of deferred taxes - Permanent differences (0.7} 20 (0.L3) 22
Effective tax rate - < = =
As at As at
C. Deferred tax assets / liabilities 31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed business losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961 6,136 3,889
Disall ws 43B of T Tax Acy, 1961 for accrued interesi 29,539 29,539
35,676 33,428
Delerred tax Habllitles
Property, plani and equipment and capital work in progress 11,745 11,745
11,745 11,745
Deferred tax assets (net) 23,930 21,683
Deferred tax assets recognised * = S

* The Company has significant carry forward business losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961. In view of absence of reasonable cerainly of sufficient Future
taxable peofits, deferred tax assels has been recognized to the extent of deferred 1ax liabililies only.

D. Movement in deferred tax balances
31 March 2025

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment and capilal work in progress
Disallowance /s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 for acerued interest
Unabsorbed business fosses as per Income Tax Acl, 1961

Total

31 March 2024

Particulars

Property, plani and equipmenl and capital work in progress
Disallowance u/s 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 for accrued interest
Unabsorbed business losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961

Total

Balance as at l;’::?;‘i“::ﬁ'::: Balance as at
1 April 2024 during 202425 31 March 2025
{11,745) - (11,745)
29,539 = 20,539
3.839 2247 6,136
21,683 2,047 23,930
Balance as at '::ml::e:lo:: Balamce as at
1 April 2023 during 2023-24 31 March 2024
(11.745) - {11,745)
25695 3,844 29,539
3,491 398 3.889
17,441 4,242 21,683
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E. Tax Losses carried forward

Tax bosses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised with expiry date as follows

As at
31 March 2025
Amouat Expiry Date
(Financial Year)
Business loss 10 202526
Business loss 466 2026-27
Business loss 3,157 2027-28
Business loss 3,227 2028-29
Buginess loss 3,365 2029-30
Business loss 2,582 2030-31
Business loss 1,630 2031-32
Business loss 9,245 2032-33
As at
31 March 2024
Amouot Expiry Date
(Fimancial Year)
Business loss 283 2024-25
Business loss 710 2025-26
Business loss 466 202627
Business loss 3,157 2027-28
Business loss 3,227 2028-29
Business loss 3.365 2029-30
Business loss 2,582 2030-31
Business loss 1,660 2031-32

/'7':3"-- & o
/ 7 "\\(}

{ f‘fSu.'“r-.ram ]'U\

054



Paylmech Hospitality Private Limited

CIN - USS5101WB2010PTC 51700

Notes to the (Imancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts are In Indian Rupees (000), unless otherwise stated)

19

20

21

b1

13

Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 M March 2024
Interest income from financial assets al amontised cost
- On bank deposils 151 76
151 76
Employee benefits expense For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 2974 -
Contribulion 1o provident fund and other funds (refer 2 below} 208 -
Compensated absences (refer b’ below) 151 -
Stafi’ welfare expenses 482 -
3815 -
a. Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes contribulions, delermined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees lowards Provident Fund,
Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' Siate Insurance, which are defined contribulion plans. The Company has no obligations other (han 10 make (he
specified coniributions. The contribulions are charged to profil or Joss as they accrue. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident
Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employees' Stale [nsurance for the year apgregated 1o INR 208 (31 March 2024 - INR Nil}.

b. Compensated absences
The Principal assumptions used in determining the obligation are as given below:

As at As at
Particalars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discounting rate {p.a.} 6.49% NA
Future salary increase ( p.a.) 5.50% NA
Finance costs
Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost
- Borrowings 5805 15278
Interest expense on delay in deposit of slatutory dues - 34
Onher finance cost - )
Less: Transferred to capilal work-in-progress {5,805) -
= 15,429
Other expenses
Repair and mainienance
- Building 94
- Machinery &9 e
Adverlisement and business promotion 527 -
Communication 131 15
Contraciual labour - 468
Insurance - 62
Legal and professional fees 4,315 637
Payment to auditors* 220 210
Power and fuel - 117
Rates and taxes 6 4
Training expenses 199 -
Miscellaneous expenses 1 [
5,582 1,589
* Payment to suditors {net of tax)
Siatutory audit 200 200
Reimbursement of exp 20 ]
220 210

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the loss for the year alributable to equily shareholders by the weighied average number of equity shares oulsianding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable 10 the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding
during the y¢ar plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity
shares.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2024
Mei loss awribulable w equity shargholders (9,246 {12,925)
Weighied average number of equity shares for calculalion of basic EPS 1997752 19.97.752
Weighied average number of equily shares for caiculation of diluted EPS 19,973,752 19.97.752
Nominal value of squity share (INR) 10 10
Basic loss per share (TNR) (4.63) 6,47}
Diluied loss per share ([NE) (4.63) 6,47}
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25

Contingent liabilities and commitments
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and others, and 18,077 1,44,210
not provided for

Contingent liabilities

The Company had received an assessment order for financial year 2013-14 whereby an addition of INR 32,798 has been made to the total
income of the Company. The addition pertains to unreasonable share premium under section 56(2)(viib) of Income Tax Act, 1961. The
Company had deposited INR 2,060 towards 15% amount of total demand of INR 13,723 and had filed an appeal before the Commissioner of
Income-tax (Appeals) against the said addition. The Company was carrying a provision of INR 4,017 as on 31 March 2023 in the books against
the aforesaid case. During the previous year, the Company received a favourable order from the Commissioner of Income-tax {Appeals) and
accordingly the provision in books was reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year ended 31 March 2024. Further, during the
current year the income tax department preferred an appeal with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) against which the Company has
received a favourable order,

Operating Segments

The Ultimate Holding Company's Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ({CODM?), since he is
responsible for alt major decision with respect to the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, alliance,
merger, acquisition and expansion of any new facility. CODM has examined the company's performance from product and geographic
perspective and has identified a single business segment i.e. "Developing and running of hotels", hence no specific disclosures have been made.

A, Information about products and services
Company primarily deals in one business namely "Developing and running of hotels”, therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not
applicable.

B. Information about geographical areas
The Company provides services to customers in India. Further, there are no non-current assets located outside India.

C. Information about major customers (from external customers)
The company did not earn any revenue during the year.

4
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26 Related party disclosures

a) Related party and matue of velated pacty retationships

Description of relationship Mame of related parey
Uhimate Holding Company SAMHI Holels Limiled
Holding company Bargque Hotgls Private Limited

b} Related party transactions durine the year:

Particwlars Ultimate Holding Company Haolding Company

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest expemse on unsecured loan
Barque Hotels Privale Limited - - - 15,273

Loan received from Holding C received

Barque Holels Private Limited - - 27,500 27,500

Repayment of loan to Holding Company
|Barquc Holels Private Limiled - - 1,75,000 -

Loan ived from Ul HoMing Company

SAMHI Hotels Limired 2,16,500 - - =

Reimbursement of exp
Barque Holcis Private Limited - - 11,279 =

Legal and prefessional fees (incloding caphtallsed amount in CWIP)

SAMHI Heels Limited 24,528 4890 = -

¢) Related party balantes at the year end

Particulars Ultimate Holding Company Holding Company

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2025 | 31 March 2024

ity © of Imterest free loans from Helding col

Bargue Hotels Private Limiled - - 1.47.669 195169

ity componeat of interest free loans frem Ultimate Holding company

SAMHI Holels Limiled 2,16,500 = - =

Other pavable

| Baraue Holels Private Limmited - - 11,279 -

Trade payables

SAMHI Hotels Limited 3331 - = =

Payable for capital assets

SAMHI Hotels Limited M,080 5,759 - -

Ouislanding balances from related panics at the year-end are unsecured and seltemenl occurs in cash.

| A
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27 Financial instraments - Falr valwes and risk mamagement

A) Financial instruments by category awd fair value

The below Lable the judg, and made in d ining the fair values of the financial instruments that are
(&) recognised and measured ai fair vahue and
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which Fair vahses arg disclosed in the financial
To provide an imdication about the refiability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial insauments into the three kevels prescribed under the

accounting standard.
3 March 2125
i Level of Fair Yalue Through Falr Yalue Through | Amortised Cost
Farticulars Hierarchy Profit and Loss Other Comprehensive
(FYTFL) income (FYTOCI)
Finamcial assets
Other nan currer financial assers Z - 10.106
Cash and cash equivalents - - 3.264 |
Total linancis| assets - - 13378
Financial liabilithes
Mon-current Borrowings 2 - - 2.00.99]
Current trade bl - - 5361
(Onher current Fmancial liabilities = = 57 496
Curreni financial liabilities - Cument bormowings 2 - - 1015
Total hnancial liabilities - - 264,867
31 March 2024
) Level of Fair ¥Yalue Through Fair Valwe Through Amaorilsad Cost
Eanticniar Hievarchy Profit and Loss Other Comprehensive
{FVTPL) Income (F¥YTOCH)
Financinl assets
Other non current financial assels - - 166
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1.152
Total fimancial assets - - 1.34%
Financlal Nahilitles
- - ala

Other current financizl liabilitics - - THER
Total financial Uabifitles a P 2.801 |

The fair valve of ade payables, other coment Ginancial liabitivies and cash and cash cquivalents app their camying dug 10 their shon-tenm nature.
Inicrest rates on nen-current borrowings are equivalent to market rare. Accordingly, the carrying value of such bomowings approximales the fair value,
The Company has not disclosed the fair valugs of non-curment financial asscts as their carmying amount id 2 reasonable approximation of fair valuc,

B) Messurement of fair values
There are g wransfer between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 for the year ended 3| March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

) Finsncial risk management
Risk mansgement framework
The Company's activitics cxposc it 1o a varicty of financial risks: market risk (ineluding inlerest rie risky, credit tisk and bquidity rizk.

The Ultimale Eloiding Company's Chief Financial Officer under the dircetions of Board of Dircetors imyp risk B policies across the Company. The
blished to identify and analyse the risks faccd by the Company, to set appropriats risk Iimits and controls, te monilor risks and adherence

Company's risk g policies are

to limits in order to minimize the financial impact of such risks. The risk manegement poticics and systems are reviewed regularly 1 reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activhics.

L Credlt risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial 1oss (o e Company if 2 or party o a fmamcial i fails 1o mect its contractual obligations. The carrying amount of financial

assets reprosent the eaximom credil risk cxposure. The Company has credit policies in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The: Compemy policy is 1o place vash and cash cquivalonts and other bank balances with banks amd ial instirut pantics with good credit rating.

The Company has given security deposits 1o vendors and goverment depariments for securing services from thern, The Company docs not expect any defauli from these partics and
accordmgly the risk of default is negligible or nil.

There are no significant concentrations of eredit risk within the Company.

\C
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ii. Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encouniee difficulty in g the obligat iated with ils financial ligbilities that are schled by delivering cash or another
fmancial asser. The Company's approach to g liquidity is to engure, a3 (aras posslbl& that it will have sufficient liquidity 10 meet its liabilitics when they are due, under both
normel and stressed conditions, without T ing ptable losscs or risking damage to Company's reputation,
M i rollmg of the Company liquidity position and mh and cash cquivakents on (he basis of expecled cash flows lo ¢nsure it has sufficient cash o meet
opcraﬁonal needs. Such f & takes into consideration the Crapany’s debt g plans, und itted borrowing facilities and covenant compliance.
Ukimate responsibility for liquidity risk 5 rests with the Board of Di which has ¢stablished an appropriate liquidity risk t k for the
of the Company®s short-lern, medinm term and long-teron funding and liquids g qui
(a) Exposwre to liqwidity risk
The following are the ining 1 itics of financial liabilities at 1b¢ reportng date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted;
Contractaal cash flows {INR)
31 March 1925 Carrylng amount Total -1 year 1-2 years 1-5 years More than 5
years

Nem - derivatlve finaacial Babiltes
Mon-current bormowings 200991 202940 . 3,028 1.99.M2 .
Current borrowings 1019 Lo9 Lo19
Trade payables 5361 5,361 5361 - - -
Other current financial liabilitics $7.496 57496 57,496 & = -

264,867 166,816 §3.67¢ 3028 199,912 -

Contraciual cash fows (INR)
31 March 2024 Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-2 years 2.5 years More than 5
years
Non-derivative (Tnancial liabilities
Trade payables 3 33 313
Other current financial labilities 1.688 T.638 1.688 ¥ = -
5,009 A.001 8,001 - = -
(b) Financing arrangements
The Company bas acress to the following undrawn borrowing facilitics at the end of the reponting pedod:
Asai Asml
31 March 2025 M March 2024
Term loan from bank 96,042 -
96,042 -

#i. Market risk
Thc Company is exposed 1 market risk primanily relating to the risk of changes in market prices, such as mierest Tates, that will affeet the Company's expense or the value of its
holdings of Fnancial &
Interest rate risk
Interest mic risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a Anancial i wil! fh b of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s cxposure to the
nigk of changes in marke interest raies relates primerily vo the Company's bomowings with fixed interest mtcs.
The Company evaluates the interest rates in the market on a regular hasis to explore the option of refinancing of the b mgs of the Company,
Exposure to inferest rute sk

The intercst rak: profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instraments is as follows:

Amount in INR
31 March 202% A March 2024
Fixed rate Instrumenis
Noni-current borrowings 100,991 -
Financial agsets - bank deposits 6,368 -

Fair vatue semsitivity analysis for fixed-rale instruments
The Company docs not sccount for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilitics at faic value through profit or boss. Therefore. 2 change in inlerest rates al the reporting date
would not affect profit or boss. Also refer note 27 A for fair value disclosure.

I8 Capital Management
The Company's policy is to maintain 2 sirong capilal base <o as 1o maintain investor. creditor and market confidence and te sustain future devclopment of the dusiness.

The Board of Dircctors of the 1lolding company socks 1o mamiain 2 balance b the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advaniages and
security afforded by a sound capital pesition. The Company Hors capital using loan to value (LTV) method ta ensure 1hal the Joan to value docs nol increasc beyond 63% on any

given reporting daie at Company level.

The Company is not subjeet 1o cxternally imposed capilal requircments

As a part af its capital management policy. the Company did not have any defaulis in the repayiment of loans and interest, There has been no loan covenant defanlts
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29 Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {MSMED) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Dwaes to micro and smail enterprises

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small enterprises as al the end of the year:

Principal

Interest

The amounts of the payments made 10 micro and small enterprises beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year.

The amount of interest paid under the act beyond Lhe appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payabie for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid bul
beyond (he appointed day during the ysar) but withoul adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. -
The amount of furiher interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such daie when

the interest dues as above are aclually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a -
deductible eapendiuce under the Act

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services 1o the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small
enlerprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 (MSMED). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounis
payable 10 such enterprises as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 has been made in Lhe financial stalements based on information received and available wilth

the Company.

%
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30 New standards and interpr » ot yet adopted
Minisy of Corporate A ffairs (*MCA™) notifies new standards or dments 1o the dards under Companics ([ndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
For the year ended 31 March 2025, MCA has notified ind AS — 117 ] i and d to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and kaseback transactions, applicable Io

the Company w.e.f. I April 2024. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it dees not have any significant impact in its
financial statements.

31 Rato Anslysis and lts elements

Ratio m times% Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 % Change Reason for variance
(a) Current Rano in times Current Assels Current .40 0.88 -54.98% | Current ratio has decrcased due
Liabilities to increase in  payable for
capital asscls in current year.

(b} Debt-Equity Ratio in times Total Borrowings | Total Equity 0.67 100% | Variance due b term Joan from

bank avatled in current year.

(<) Rerurn on Equity Ratio m% Loss for the year |Average Total -3.41% -12.89% -73.56%|Perorn on equity ratio has

equity i 1 duc 1w reduction in
losses and interest frec loan
received from ultimate holding
company.

(d) Retumn on Capital employed in% Less before Tangiblc Met -1.84% -0.63% 192.26%| The change in returm on cepiral|
finance cost and  |Worth + Total cmployced is due to reduction in
taxes Borrowings losses  and  increasc  in

borrowings.

(2) Trade payable turmover ratio in times Other expenzes  |Average Trade 1.97 515 -61.77%|Decrease  in wade  payable

Payables mmover rakio is due to increase
in trade payable.

As the Company docs not have any revenue generation unir till 3 Lst March 2025, so the Company has not p d the following ratios:

a) Debt service coverage ratio

b} Inventory turnover ratio

¢) Trade receivable tumover ratio

d) Wet capital urnover ratio

¢} Net profit ratio

f) Retumn on mvestment

32 The Company has incurred a net loss of INR 9,246 thousands during the year ended 11 March 2025 (previous year Joss: INR 12,925 thousands) and as of that date, the Company’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by TNR 39,572 thousands.

ted to gencrate profits from its operations of

The Company has continued financial and operational support from SAMHI Hotels Limited (the ultimate holding comp
Holiday Inn Express in Rajarhat, Kolkata hotel which has become operational subsequent 1o the year end.

y) and has proj

The Company has d the lig position and recoverable values of its fi ial and non-financial assets. The Company bas considered inrcrnal and external sources of information
and has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates, expecis to recover the carrying amount of these assets, The Company will continue to
closcly menitor any materizl changes to fiure economic conditions.

In view of the above, the Management and Board of Directors of the Company have prepared these financial on a going concemn basis,

1%
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33 Other statotory information
(i} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,

(i) The Company does not have any Ir ions with panies struck off.
{iii) The Company has no charges or satisfactions pending registration with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashira (*ROC’) beyond the statutory period except for the term loan obtained
from Federal Bank Ltd on 4 D ber 2024. The d ion for this charge is currently under discussion between the lender and the borrower. Upon finalization and exccution of the

relevant documents, the charge will be duly filed with the ROC.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds fo any other person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entitis (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or om behalf of the Ultimate Bencficiaries.
(vi} The Cornpany has not received any fund from any personis) or entityies), including forcign entities (Funding Party) with the und ding {wheth ded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall:
{a} Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guarantec, sccurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company has not entered inte any such ransaction which is niot recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered o disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other rekevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
{¥iii) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the namre of loans ko promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either
severally or joindy with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or peziod of repayment.
(ix) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government ot any government authority.
(x) The Cornpany has plicd with ber of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companics {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017,
{xi) The Company has not cnicred into any scheme of arangement which has an accounting impact on currcht or previcus financial year.
(xii) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the current or previous year.
(xiil) The Company has not availed any working capital limits hence no quarierly returns have becn filed.
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